
BUCHANAN COUNTY 
Independence, Iowa 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORTS 
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

AND SIJI'PI.FMENT/\RI' ISFORMATION 
SCMI1)LL.L 01: I:IhL)IS(iS .4NL) QLES'I'IONEL) COSTS 



BUCHANAN COUNTY 
Independence, Iowa 

TABLE OF' CONTENTS 

& 
OFFICIALS ............................................................................................................................. 1 

............................................................................. INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 2-3 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS ........................ .. .......................... 4-9 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Exhibit 
Goverinnent-wide Financial Statements: 

Statement of Net Assets .............................................. A .......................... 10 
Statement of Activities ......................... .... ................................... B .......................... 11 

Goven~mental Funds Financial Statements: 
Balance Sheet ...................................................................................... C ..................... 12-13 
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds 

to the Statement of Net Assets ................... ....... ........................ D .......................... 14 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in 
Fund Balances ................................................................................. E ...................... 15-1 6 

Reconciliation of the Stateinent of Revenues, Expenditures 
and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds to the 
Statement of Activities ....................... .. ..................................... F ........................... 17 

Proprietary Fund Financial Statements: 
Statement of Net Assets .................................................................... G .......................... 18 
Stateinent of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net 
Assets ............................................................................................... H .......................... 19 

Statement of Cash Flows ............................................ I ........................... 20 
Fiduciary Fund Financial Statement: 

Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities - Agency Funds ........... J ........... .. .......... 21 
Notes to Financial Statements .................................................... .. .................. 22-36 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule of Receipts, Disbursements and 

Changes in Balances - Budget and Actual (Cash Basis) - All 
Governmental Funds ................................................................................... .37 

Budget to GAAP Reconciliatioil ............................................................................. .38 
Notes to Required Supplementary Informatioil - Budgetary Reporting .............................. 39 
Schedule of Funding Progress for Retiree Health Plan ............... ....., ............................ 40 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: Schedule & 
Nonmajor Governinental Funds: 

...................... Combining Balance Sheet ...................... .. ................................. 1 41-42 
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes 

...................... in Fund Balances ............................................................................. 2 43-44 
Agency Funds: 

...................... Combining Schedule of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities .................. 3 45-46 
Combining Schedule of Changes in Fiduciary Assets and 

Liabilities .................................................................................. 4 ...................... 47-48 
Scbedule of Revenues by Source and Expenditures by Function - 

All Governmental Funds ........................ .. ..................................... 5 ...................... 49-50 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards ........................................ 6 ...................... 51-52 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 

..... ................... ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENTAUDITING STANDARDS .. 53-54 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT AND COMPLIANCE WITH 
REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON 
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
OMB CIRCULAR A-133 .............................................................................................. 55-56 

..... SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS ............................. .......... 57-61 



BUCHANAN COUNTY 
Independence. Iowa 

OPPICIALS 

Mike Ferreter .................................... Board of Supervisors ............................. January 201 1 
Ellen Gaffney .................................... Board of Supervisors ............................. January 2013 
Ralph Icrerner .................................... Board of Supervisors ............................. January 201 1 

Cindy Gosse .................... ... ........... Coulty Auditor ............ ... .............. January 2013 
Judy Harland ........................................ County Treasurer ................................ January 201 1 
Diane Curry .......................................... Couilty Recorder ................................ January 201 1 
Bill Wolfgram ........................................ County Sheriff .................................. January 2013 
Allan Vander Hart ................................ County Attorney ................................. January 201 1 
Brad Harms ...................................... County Assessor ................... ............ Appointed 



m Gardiner Thansen 
Certified Public  Accountants  

Independent Auditors' Report 

To the Officials of Buchanan County 
Independence, Iowa 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Buchanan County, Iowa, as of and 
for the year ended June 30, 2010, which collectively comprise the County's basic financial 
statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of 
Buchanan County's management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial 
statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the 
standards applicable to fmancial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by 
the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perfom 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating 
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe our audit provides a reasonable basis 
for our opinions. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of Buchanan County at June 30, 2010, and the respective 
changes in financial position and cash flows where applicable, for the year then ended in 
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 
25, 201 1 on our consideration of Buchanan County's internal control over financial reporting 
and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant 
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing 
of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not 
to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That 
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit. 

1209 South Main ' Charles City, IA 50616-0216 ' Phone: (641) 226-7096. Fax: (641) 220-7103. w.gardinercpa.com 



Managen~eilt's Discussion and Analysis, Budgetary Comparison Information and the Schedule of 
Funding Progress of the Retiree Health Plan on pages 4 - 9 and 37 - 40 are not required parts of 
the basic financial statements, but are supplementary infornlation required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted 
principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation 
of the required supplementary inforination. We did not audit the information and express no 
opinion on it. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinioils on the financial stateinents that 
collectively conlprise Buchanan County's basic financial statements. We previously audited, in 
accordailce with the standards referred to in the second paragraph of tlus report, the financial 
statements for the seven years ended June 30, 2009 (which are not presented herein) and 
expressed unqualified opinions on the financial statements. The supplementary information 
included in Schedules 1 through 6, including the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
required by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Audits of States, 
Local Governments. and Non-Profit Organizations, is presented for purposes of additional 
ailalysis and is not a required part of the basic fillancia1 statements. Such illformation has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements and, in 
our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements 
taken as a whole. 

March 25, 201 1 



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Buchanan County provides this Management's Discussion and Analysis of its financial statements. This 
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities is for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. We 
encourage readers to consider this information in coi~junction with the County's financial statements, which 
follow. 

2010 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

Revenues of the County's governmental activities increased 4%, or approximately $744,773, 
from fiscal 2009 to fiscal 2010. Property tax increased approximately $255,622, charges for 
services decreased $530,502, operating grants decreased by $412,002, and capital grants and 
contributions increased approximately $1,707,627. 

. Program expenses were 6% or approximately $875,608, less in fiscal 2010 than in fiscal 2009. 
Roads and transportation expense decreased approximately $900,998. Public Safety and Legal 
Services expense decreased approximately $250,047. 

The County's net assets increased 10% or approximately $2,895,224, from June 30, 2009 to June 
30, 2010. 

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT 

The annual report consists of a series of financial statements and other information, as follows: 

Management's Discussion and Analysis introduces the basic financial statements and provides an 
analytical overview of the County's finailcia1 activities. 

The Government-wide Financial Statements consist of a Statement of Net Assets and a Statement of 
Activities. These provide information about the activities of Buchanan County as a whole and present 
an overall view of the County's finances. 

The Fund Financial Statements tell how governmental services were financed in the short tern1 as well 
as what remains for future spending. Fund financial statements report operations in more detail than 
the government-wide statements by providing information about the most significant funds. The 
remaining statements provide financial information about activities for which Buchanan County acts 
solely as an agent or custodial1 for the benefit of those outside of County government (Agency Funds). 

Notes to financial statements provide additional information essenlial to a Cull understanding of the 
data provided in the basic financial statements. 

Required Supplementary I~lformation further explains and supports the financial statements with a 
comparison of the County's budget for the year, as well as presenting the Schedule of Funding 
Progress for the Retiree I-Iealth Plan. 

Other Supplementary Information provides detailed information about the nonmajor funds and the 
individual Agency Funds. In addition, the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards provides 
details of various federal programs benefiting the County. 



REPORTING THE COUNTY'S FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES 

Government-wide Financial Statements 

One of the most important questions asked about the County's finances is, "Is the County as a whole better off 
or worse off as a result of the year's activities?" The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities 
report informatcon helps answer this question. These statements include all assets and liabilities using the 
accrual basis of accounting and the economic resources measurement focus, which is similar to the accounting 
used by most private sector conlpanies. All of the current year's revenues and expenses are taken into 
account, regardless of when cash is received or paid. 

The Statement of Net Assets presents all of the County's assets and liabilities, with the difference between the 
two reported as "net assets". Over lime, increases or decreases in the County's net assets may serve as a 
useful indicator of whether the financial position of the County is improving or deteriorating. 

The Statement of Activities presents infonuation showing how the County's net assets changed during the 
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the change occurs, regardless of the 
timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that 
will not result in cash flows until future fiscal periods. 

The County's gover~nnental activities are presented in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of 
Activities. Govern~nental activities include public safety and legal services, physical health and social 
services, mental health, county environment and education, roads and transportation, governmental services to 
residents, administration, interest on long-term debt and non-program activities. Property tax and state and 
federal grants finance nlost of these activities. 

Fund Financial Statentents 

The County has three kinds of funds: 

1) Governinental funds account for most of the County's basic services. These focus on how money flows 
into and out of those funds, and the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. The 
governmental funds include: 1) the General Fund, 2) the Special Revenue Funds, such as Mental Health, 
Rural Services and Secondary Roads, and 3) the Debt Service Fund. These funds are reported using the 
current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting, which 
measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The gove~,lmental fund 
financial statements provide a detailed short-term view of the County's general governme~~tal operations 
and the basic services it provides. Governmenlal fund information helps determine whether there are 
more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the County's programs. 

The required financial statements for governmental funds include a balance sheet and a statement of 
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances. 

2) Proprietary funds account for the County's Internal Service Fund, Employee Group Health Insurance 
Account. Internal Service Funds are an accounting device used to accuinulate and allocate costs internally 
among the County's various functions. 

The required financial statements for proprietary funds include a statement of net assets, a statement of 
revenues, expenses and changes in fund net assets and a statement of cash flows. 

3) Fiduciary funds are used to report assets held in a trust or agency capacity for others which cannot be used 
to support the County's own programs. These fiduciary funds include Agency Funds that account for 
E911 arid emergency management services and the County Assessor, to name a few. 



REPORTING THE COUNTY'S FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED) 

The required financial statements for fiduciary funds include a statement of fiduciary assets and liabilities. 
Reconciliations between the government-wide financial statements and the fund financial statements follow 
the fund financial statements. 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

As noted earlier, net assets inay serve over time as a useful indicator of financial position. Buchanail County's 
combined net assets were increased from a year ago, iilcreasiilg from $28.2 millioil to $31.1 million. The 
analysis that follows focuses on the changes in the net assets for governmental activities. 

Net Assets of Governmental Activities 
(Exoressed in thou sands^ 

Current and Other Assets $14,758 $17,294 
Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation) 29,758 24,523 

Total Assets 44,516 41,817 

Long-Term Debt Outstanding 4,646 4,669 
Other Liabilities 8,751 8,924 

Total Liabilities 13,397 13,593 

Net Assets: 
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 25,748 23,680 
Restricted 3,523 2,206 
Unrestricted 1,848 2,338 

Total Net Assets $31,119 $28,224 

Net assets of Buchanan County's govermnental activities increased 10% ($31.1 million compared to $28.2 
millioil). The largest portion of the County's net assets is invested in capital assets (e.g. land, infrastructure, 
buildings and equipment), less the related debt. Restricted net assets represent resources that are subject to 
external restrictions, constitutional provisioils or enabling legislation on how they can be used. Unrestricted 
net a s se tg the  part of net assets that can be used to finance day-to-day operations without constraints 
established by debt covenants, enabling legislation or other legal requirements-decreased from 
approximately $2,338,234 at June 30, 2009 to $1,847,921 at the end of this year, a suhstantial decrease. 



Changes in Net Assets of Governmental Activities - 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Year ended Year ended 
June 30,2010 June 30,2009 

Revenues: 
Program Revenues: 

Charges for Service $1,780 $2,310 
Operating Grants, Coiltributions and Restricted Interest 4,949 5,361 
Capital Grants, Contributions and Restricted Interest 2,981 1,274 

General Revenues: 
Property Tax 6,935 6,679 
Peilalty and Interest on Property Tax 66 63 
State Tax Credits 317 334 
Local Ootion Sales Tax 835 853 
Unrestricted Investment Earning 49 110 
Other General Revenues 84 216 

Total Revenues 17,996 17,200 

Program Expenses: 
Public Safety and Legal Services 
Physical Health and Social Services 
Mental Health 
County Environment and Education 
Roads and Tra~lsportation 
Goveinmental Services to Residents 
Administration 
Non-Program - 
Interest on Long-term Debt 219 138 

Total Expenses 15,101 15,976 

Increase in Net Assets 2,895 1,224 

Net Assets Beginning of Year (restated) 28,224 27,000 

Net Assets End of Year $31,119 $28,224 

The results of governmental activities for the year resulted in Buchanan County's net assets increasing by 
approximately $2,895,224. Revenues for governmental activities increased by approximately $794,773 from 
the prior year, with property Lax revenue up from the prior year by approximately $552,622. 

The County increased property tax rates for 2010 by an average of 3.25%. This increase raised the County's 
property tax revenue by approximately $246,028 in 2010 and is due to the rural road projects and public 
health. 

The cost of all governmental activities this year was $15.1 million compared to $15.9 inillioil last year. 
However, as show11 in the Statement of Activities the amount taxpayers ultimately financed for these activities 
was only $5,390,723 because some of the cost was paid by those directly benefiting from the programs 
($1,779,852) or by other govenunents and orgai~izations that subsidized certain programs with grants and 
contributions ($7,930,194). Overall, the County's governmental program revenues, including 
intergovernmental aid and fees for services, increased in 2010 from approxi~nately $8.9 million to $9.71 
million. The County paid for the remaining "public benefit" portion of governmental activities with 
approximately $6.9 million in taxes (some of which could only be used for certain programs) and with other 
revenues, such as interest and general entitlen~ents. 



INDIVIDUAL MAJOR FUND ANALYSIS 

As Buchanan County completed the year, its governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of 
$5,589,709, a decrease of $2,288,478 from last year's total of $7,878,187. The following are the major 
reasons for the changes in fund balances of the major funds from the prior year: 

General Fund revenues decreased and expenditures increased when compared to the prior year. The 
ending fund balance showed a decrease of $297,066 from the prior year to $1,674,444. 

The County has continued to look for ways to effectively manage the cost of mental health services. 
For the year, expenditures totaled approximately $2,845,162. The Mental Health Fund balance at year 
end decreased by approximately $142,663 from the prior year. 

The Rural Services Fund revellnes and expenditures increased, slightly over the prior year. The ending 
fund balance showed an increase of $104,078 from the prior year to $364,825. 

Secondary Roads Fund expenditures decreased by approximately $2,124,998 over the prior year. The 
Secondary Roads Fund ending balance increased approximately by $952,558. 

During the year ended June 30, 2009, the County issued $4,550,000 of general obligation bonds to help 
finance the construction of the County Law Enforcement Center. The proceeds from the bond issued were 
placed in the Capital Projects Fund set up to account for this major project. Approximately $196,912 
remained in the Capital Projects Fund at the end of the year. 

BUDGETARY HIGIILIGHTS 

During the year, Buchanan County amended its budget one time. The mendment was made in May 2010. 
This amendment was made for net increases in revenues and in operational expenditures. 

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets 

At June 30, 2010, Buchanan County had approxinlately $41.1 million invested in a broad range of capital 
assets, including public safety equipment, buildings, park facilities, roads and bridges. This is a net increase 
(including additions and deletions) of approximately $6,506,623 or 18% over last year. 

Capital Assets of Governmental Activities at Year End 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

June 30, June 30, 
2010 2009 

Land $1,995 $1,847 
Buildings and Inlprovements 3,921 3,813 
Equipment and Vehicles 7,284 6,952 
Infrastructure 23,188 19,572 
Construction in Process 4,733 2,430 

Total $41,121 $34,614 

This year's major additions include 
Capital Assets Contributed by the IA Departmeut of Transportation $2,888 
Law Enforcement Center Construction in Progress 2,895 
Infrastructure 206 
Secondary Road Equipment 134 
Courthouse Generator 191 

Total $6,314 



The County had depreciation expense of $1,445,439 in fiscal year 2010 and total accumulated depreciation of 
$11,363,261 at June30,2010. 

The County's fiscal year 2010 capital budget included $5,724,119 for capital projects, principally for the 
upgrading of secondary roads and bridges and construction of the Law Enforcement Center. More detailed 
information about the County's capital assets is presented in Note 4 to the financial statements. 

Long-Term Debt 

At June 30, 2010 Buchanan County has approximately $4,536,200 in general obligation notes and other debt 
outstanding compared to approximately $4,669,019 at June 30, 2009, as shown below. 

Outstanding Debt at Year-End of Governmental Activities 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

General Obligation Notes 
General Obligation Bonds 
Drainage Warrants 
Compensated Absences 

Total $4,536 $4,670 

Debt increased as a resull of debt issued for the Conservation Land Purchase. 

The Constitution of the State of Iowa limits the amount of general obligation debt counties can issue to 5 
percent of the assessed value of all taxable property within the County's corporate limits. Buchailan County's 
outstanding general obligation debt is significantly below its constitutional debt limit of $65 million. Other 
obligations include accrued vacation pay and sick leave. Additional information about the County's long-term 
debt is presented in Note 6 to the financial statements. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES 

Buchanan County's elected and appointed officials and citizens considered many factors when setting the 
fiscal year 2011 budget, tax rates, and fees that will be charged for various County services. One of those 
factors is the econorny. Unelnployment in the County now stands at 6.5% versus 6.9% a year ago. This 
compares with the State's unemploynlenl rate of 6.3% and the national rate of 9%. 

These indicators were taken into account when adopting the budget for fiscal year 201 1. With the increase in 
rural valuation, due to equalization, rollback and new construction, rural levies decreased slightly. Ilowever, 
tax dollars increased slightly due to rural road projects, construction of the Jail and Law Enforcement Center 
and the public health department returning under the county finances. 

CONTACTING TIIE COUNTY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and creditors with a general 
overview of Buchanan County's finances and to show the County's accountability for the money it receives. 
If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the Buchanan County 
Auditor's Office, 210 - 5"' Avenue NE, City of Independence, Iowa. 



BUCHANAN COUNTY 
Independence, Iowa 

Exhibit A 

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
June 30,2010 

Governmental 
Activities 

ASSETS 
Cash & Pooled Investments $6,805,762 
Receivables: 

Property Tax: 
Delinquent 14,732 
Succeeding Year 6,995,416 

Interest & Penalty On Property Tax 116 
Accounts 8,879 
Accrued Interest 786 
Drainage Assessments 432 

Due From Other Governments 428,248 
Iilventories 437,604 
Prepaid Insurance 66,047 
Capital Assets (Net of Accumulated Depreciation) 29,758,063 - 

TOTAL ASSETS 44,516,085 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts Payable 1,106,943 
Accrued Interest Payable 21,999 
Salaries & Benefits Payable 180,483 
Due To Other Goveriunents 445,508 
Deferred Revenue: 

Succeeding Year Property Tax 6,995,416 
Long-Term Liabilities: 

Portion Due Or Payable Within One Year: 
General Obligation Notes 13,335 
General Obligation Bonds 155,000 
Compensated Absences 260,321 

Portion Due Or Payable After One Year: 
General Obligation Notes 51,999 
General Obligation Bonds 4,005,000 
Drainage Warrants Payable 50,545 
Net OPEB Liability 110,110 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 13,396,659 - 
NET ASSETS 

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 25,747,625 
Restricted For: 

Mental Health Purposes 425,154 
Secondary Roads Purposes 2,124,467 
Debt Service (2,570) 
Capital Projects (8,649) 
Other l'urposes 985,478 

Unrestricted 1,847,921 

TOTAL NET ASSETS $31,119,426 

See Notes To Financial Statements 



Exhibit B 

BUCHANAN COUNTY 
Independence, Iowa 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
Year Ended June 30,2010 

Program Revenues 
Operating Grants, Capital Grants, Net (Expense) 

Contributions, Contributions, Revenue 
Charges for &Restricted &Restricted & Changes 

Expenses Service Interest Interest In Net Assets 
FUNCTIONSIPROGRAMS: 
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES: 

Public Safety and Legal Services 
Physical Health and Social Services 
Mental Health 
County Environment and Education 
Roads and Transportation 
Goverlunental Services to Residents 
Administration 
Non-Program - 
Interest on Long-Term Debt 218;867 0 0 0 (2181867) 

TOTAL $15,100,769 $1,779,852 $4,948,889 $2,981,305 (5,390,723) 

GENERAL REVENUES: 
Property and Other County Tax Levied For: 

General Purposes 
Debt Seivice 

Penalty and Interest on Property Tax 
State Tax Credits 
Local Option Sales Tax 
Unrestricted Investment Earnings 
Miscellaneous 
Loss on Disposal of Capital Assets 

TOTALGENERALREVENUES 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 

NET ASSETS, BEGLNNING OF YEAR 

NET ASSETS END OF YEAR 

See Notes To Financial Statements 



BUCHANAN COUNTY 
Independence, Iowa 

BALANCE SHEET 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

June 30,2010 

Special Revenue 
Mental 

General Health 
ASSETS 

Cash and Pooled Investments: $1,761,765 $885,751 
Receivables: 

Property Tax: 
Delinquent 8,465 2,757 
Succeeding Year 3,786,961 1,233,252 

Interest and Penalty on Property Taxes 116 0 
Accounts 1,98 1 604 
Accrued Interest 74 1 0 
Assessments 0 0 

Due From Other Governments 53,349 36,025 
Prepaid Insurance 44,681 0 
Inventories 0 0 

TOTAL ASSETS $5,658,059 $2,158,389 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities: 
Accounts Payable $100,893 $105,964 
Salaries and Benefits Payable 56,002 13,170 
Accrued Interest 0 0 
Due To Other Governments 31,236 380,849 
Deferred Revenue: 

Succeeding Year Property Tax 3,786,961 1,233,252 
Other 8,523 3,842 

Total Liabilities 3,983,615 1,737,077 

Fund Balances: 
Reserved For: 

Inventories 
Debt Service 

Unreserved, reported in: 
General 
Special Revenue 
Capital Projects 0 0 

Total Fund Balances 1,674,444 421,312 

TOTAL LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCES $5,658,059 $2,158,389 

See Notes To Financial Statements 



Exhibit C 

Special Revenue Funds 
Rural Secondary Capital 

Services Roads projects Norunajor Total 



Exhibit D 

BUCHANAN COUNTY 
Independence, Iowa 

RECONCILIATION O F  THE BALANCE SHEET 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

June 30,2010 

Total Governmental Fund Balances (Pages 12-13) 

Amounts reported for governineiztal activities in the Statement of Net Assets are 
dgferent because: 

Capital assets used in governnlental activities are not current financial resources 
and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. The cost of the assets is 
$41,121,325 and the accumulated depreciation is $1 1,363,262. 29,758,063 

Other long-term assets are not available to pay current expenditures and, 
therefore, are deferred in the funds. 16,257 

The Internal Service Fund is used by management to charge the costs of self 
funding of the County's health insurance benefit plan to individual funds. The 
assets and liabilities of the Internal Service Fund are included in governmental 
activities in the Statement of Net Assets. 419,054 

Long-term liabilities, including bo~lds payable, compensated absences payable, 
other poste~nployrne~rt benefits payable and accrued interest payable are not due 
and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. (4,663,657) 

Net Assets of Governmental Activities (Page 10) 

See Notes To Financial Statements. 



BUCHANAN COUNTY 
Independence, Iowa 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
Year Ended June 30,2010 

Special Revenue 
Mental 

General I-Iealth 
REVENUES: 

Property and Other County Tax $3,637,997 $1,225,951 
Local Option Sales Tax 0 0 
Interest and Penalty on Property Tax 66,404 0 
Intergovernmental 680,142 1,463,032 
Licenses and Permits 525 0 
Charges for Services 448.049 0 - 
Use of Money and Property 
Miscellaneous 

Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES: 
Operating: 

Public Safety and Legal Services 
Physical Health and Social Services 
Mental Health 
County Environment and Education 
Roads and Transportation 
Governmental Services to Residents 
Administration 
Non-Program 

Debt Service 
Capital Projects 

Total Expenditures 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (222,566) (142,663) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Sale of Capital Assets 500 0 
Operating Transfers In 0 0 
Operating Transfers Out (75,000) 0 
Drainage WarrantsiImprovemc~~t Cerlificates Issued 0 0 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (74,500) 0 

Net Change in Fund Balauces (297,066) (142,663) 

Fund Balances - Beginning of Year 1,971,510 563,975 

Increase in Reserve For Iilventories 0 0 

Fund Balances E n d  of Year $1,674,444 $421,312 

See Notes To Financial Statements 



Exhibit E 

Special Reveilue Funds 
Rural Secondary Capital 

Services Roads Projects Nonmaior Total 



BUCHANAN COUNTY 
Exhibit F 

Independence, Iowa 

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
Year Ended June 30,2010 

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds (Pages 15-16) $(2,359,297) 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are 
dvferent because: 

Govermnental funds report capital outlays as expenditures while governmental 
activities report depreciation expense to allocate those expenditures over the 
life of the assets. Capital outlay expenditures and contributed capital assets 
exceeded depreciation expense in the current year as follows: 

Expenditures for Capital Assets $3,724,293 
Capital Assets Contributed by the Iowa Department of Tra~lsportation 2,888,765 
Capital Assets Contributed by Others 85,000 
Depreciation Expense (1,445,438) 5,252,620 

In the Statement of Activities, the loss on the disposition of capital assets is 
reported, whereas the governmental funds report the proceeds from the sale as 
an increase in financial resources. (17,442) 

Because some revenues will not be collected for several months after the 
County's year end, they are not considered available revenues and are deferred 
in the gove~nmental funds as follows: 

Property Tax 5,943 
Other (24,864) (18,921) 

Proceeds from issuing long-term liabilities provide current financial resources 
to governmental funds, but issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the 
Statement of Net Assets. Repayment of long-term liabilities is an expenditure 
in the governinental funds, but the repayment reduces long term liabilities in the 
Statemeilt of Net Assets. Current year repayments exceeded issues as follows: 

Issued (74,860) 
Repaid 258,335 183,475 

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of 
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in 
governmental funds as follows: 

Compensated Absences (50,656) 
Other Postemployment Benefits (110,110) 
Interest on Long-Term Debt 901 (159,865) 

Inve~ltories in the governmental funds have been recorded as expenditures when 
paid. However, the Statement of Activities will report these items as 
expenditures in the period that the corresponding net asset is exhausted. 70,819 

The Internal Service Fund is used by management to charge the costs of 
employee health benefits to individual funds. The change in net assets of the 
Internal Service Fund is reported with govermnental activities. (56,165) 

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities (Page 11) $2,895,224 

See Notes to Financial Statements 
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Exhibit G 
BUCHANAN COUNTY 

Independence, Iowa 

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

June 30, 2010 

Internal Service 
Employee 

ASSETS 
Cash and Cash Equivalents $587,558 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts Payable $168,504 

NET ASSETS 
Unrestricted $419,054 

See Notes To Financial Statements 



Exhibit H 

BUCHANANCOUNTY 
Independence, Iowa 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS 

PROPRIETARY FUND 
Year Ended June 30, 201 0 

Internal Service 
Employee 

Group Health 
OPERATING REVENUES: 

Reimbursements From Operating Funds $1,634,888 
Reimbursements From Employees 89,363 
Miscellaneous 44,774 

Total Operating Revenues 1,769,025 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
Medical Claims 
Insurance Preiniuins 
Administrative Fees 

Total Operating Expenses 

Operating Loss (56,809) 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES: 
Interest on Investments 

Net Loss (56,165) 

Net Assets Beginning of Year 475,219 

Net Assets End of Year $419,054 

See Notes To Financial Statements 



Exhibit I 

BUCHANAN COUNTY 
Independence, Iowa 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
PROPRIETARY FUND 

Year Ended June 30,2010 

Internal Service 
Employee 

Group Health 
CASH PLOWS PROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

Cash Received From Operating Fund Reimbursements $1,634,888 
Cash Received From Employees and Others 134,137 
Cash Payments To Suppliers For Services (1,792,434) 

Net Cash Used In Operating Activities (23,409) 

CASH FLOWS PROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
Interest on Investments 

Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash & Cash Equivaleilts at Beginning of Year 610,323 

Cash & Cash Equivalents at End of Year $587,558 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH 
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

Operating Loss 

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss to Net Cash 
Provided By Operating Activities: 

Increase In Accounts Payable 

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities 

See Notes To Financial Statements 



Exhibit J 
BUCHANAN COUNTY 

Independence, Iowa 

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
AGENCY FUNDS 

June 30,2010 

ASSETS 

Cash & Pooled Investments: 
County Treasurer $1,110,044 
Other Couilty Officials 40,655 

Receivables: 
Property Tax: 

Delinquent 1,260 
Succeeding Year 18,709,765 

Accounts 13,140 
Accrued Interest 135 

TOTAL ASSETS 19,874,999 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts Payable 
Due To Other Governments 
Trusts Payable 
Compensated Absences 7,015 
TOTAL LIABILITIES 19,874,999 

NET ASSETS $0 

See Notes To Financial Statements 



BUCHANAN COUNTY 
Independence, Iowa 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note I :  Surnnrarv o f  Sirnificant Accounfinr Policies 

Buchanan County is a political subdivision of the State of Iowa and operates under the Home Rule 
provisions of the Constitution of Iowa. The County operates under the Board of Supervisors form of 
government. Elections are on a partisan basis. Other elected officials operate independently with the 
Board oi" Supervisors. These officials are the Auditor, Treasurer, Recorder, Sheriff, and Attorney. The 
County provides numerous services to citizens, including law enforcement, health and social services, 
palm and cultural activities, planning and zoning, roadway construction and maintenance, and general 
administrative services. 

The County's financial statements are prepared in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting 
principles as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. 

For financial reporting purposes, Buchanan County has included all funds, organizations, agencies, 
boards, commissions, and authorities. The County has also considered all poteutial component units for 
which it is financially accountable, and other organizations for which the nature and significance of 
their relationship with the County are such that exclusion would cause the County's financial statements 
to be misleading or incomplete. The Governnlental Accounting Standards Board has set forth criteria to 
be considered in determining financial accountability. These criteria include appointing a voting 
majority of an organization's governing body, and (1) the ability of the County to impose its will on that 
organization or (2) the potential for the organization to provide specific benefits to or impose specific 
financial burdens on the County. 

These financial statements present Buchanan County (the primary government) and its component units. 
The component units discussed below are included in the County's reporting entity because of the 
significance of their operational or financial relationships with the County. 

Blended Conlponent Units - The following component units are entities which are legally separate from 
the County, but are so intertwined with the County that they are, in substance, the same as the County. 
They are reported as part of the County and bleuded into the appropriate funds. 

Two drainage districts have been established pursuant to Chapter 468 of the Code of Iowa for the 
drainage of surface waters from agricultural and other lands or the protection of such lands from 
overflow. Although these districts are legally separate from the County, they are controlled, managed 
and supervised by the Buchanan County Board of Supervisors. The drainage districts are reported as a 
Special Revenue Fund. Financial infonnatioil of the individual drainage districts can he obtained from 
the Buchanan County Auditor's office. 

Jointlv Governed Organizations - The County also participates in several jointly governed 
organizations that provide goods or services to the citizenry of the County but do not meet the criteria 
of a joint venture since there is no ongoing financial interest or responsibility by the participating 
governments. The Buchanan County Board of Supervisors are members of or appoint representatives to 
the following boards and commissions: Buchanan County Assessor's Conference Board, Buchanan 
County Emergency Management Commission, and Buchanan County Joint E911 Service Board. 
Financial transactions of these organizations are included in the County's financial statements only to 
the extent of the County's fiduciary relationship with the organization and, as such, are reported in the 
Agency Funds of the County. 



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

Note I :  Sumnturv ofsipnificant Accountinp Policies (Continued) 

B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

Government-wide Financial Statements - The Stateinent of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities 
report infonnation on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the County and its conlponent units. For the 
most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental 
activities are supported by property tax, intergovernmental revenues and other nonexchange 
transactions. 

The Statement of Net Assets presents the County's nonfiduciary assets and liabilities, with the 
difference reported as ilet assets. Net assets are reported in three categories. 

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated 
depreciation and reduced by outstanding balances for bonds, notes, and other debt attributable to the 
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. 

Restricted net assets result when constraints placed on net asset use are either externally imposed or 
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

Unrestricted net assets consist of net assets that do not meet the definition of the two preceding 
categories. Unrestricted net assets often have constraints on resources imposed by management 
which can be removed or modified. 

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function are 
offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those clearly identifiable with a specific function. 
Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit 
froin goods, services or privileges provided by a given function and 2) grants, contributions and interest 
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function. Property tax and 
other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 

Fund Financial Stateinents - Separate financial statements are provided for governn~ental funds, 
proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide 
financial statements. Major individual governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the fund 
financial statements. All remaining governmental funds are aggregated and reported as nomnajor 
governmental funds. 

The County reports the following inajor governmental funds: 

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the County. All general tax revenues and other 
revenues not allocated by law or contractual agreement to some other fund are accounted for in this 
fund. From the fund are paid the general operating expenditures, the fixed charges and the capital 
improvement costs that are not paid from other funds. 

Special Revenue 

The Mental Health Fund is used to account for property tax and other revenues designated to be used to 
fund mental health, mental retardation, and developmental disabilities services. 

The Rural Services Fund is used to account for property tax and other revenues to provide services 
which are primarily intended to benefit those persons residing in the County outside of incorporated city 
areas. 

The Secondary Roads Fund is used to account for the secondary road construction and maintenance 



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

Note I :  Sunrmarv o f  Significant Accounting Policies (Contirzued) 

The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for all resources used in the acquisition and construction 
of capital facilities. 

Additionally the County reports the following funds: 

Proprietary Fund - Internal Service Fund is utilized to account for the financing of goods or 
services purchased by one department of the County and provided to other departments or 
agencies on a cost reimbursement basis. 

Fiduciary Funds - Agency funds are used to account for assets held by the County as an agent for 
individuals, private organizations, certain jointly governed organizations, other governmental 
units, and/or other funds. 

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTlNG 

The government-wide, proprietary fund and fiducia~y fund financial statements are reported using the 
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded 
when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related 
cash flows. Property tax is recognized as revenue in the year for which it is levied. Grants and similar 
items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have 
been satisfied. 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement 
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both 
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the 
current period or soon enough Lhereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the 
County considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days after year end. 

Property tax, intergovernmental revenues (shared revenues, grants and reimbursements from other 
governnlents) and interest are coilsidered to be susceptible to accrual. All other revenue items are 
considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the County. 

Expenditurcs generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However 
principal and interest on long term debt, claims, judgments and compensated absences are recorded as 
expenditures only when payment is due. Capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in 
governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are 
reported as other financing sources. 

Under the terms of grant agreements, the County funds certain programs by a coinbination of specific 
cost-reimbursement grants, categorical block grants and general revenues. Thus, when program 
expenses are incurred, there are both restricted and umestricted net assets available to finance the 
program. It is the County's policy to first apply the cost-reimbursement grant resources to such 
programs, followed by categorical block grants, and then by general revenues. 

The proprietary funds of the County applies all applicable GASB pronouncements as well as the 
following pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless these pronouncements 
conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements: Financial Accounting Standards Board Statements 
of Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins of the 
Committee on Accounting Procedure. 



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

Note I :  Summarv o f  Significant Accountinp Policies (Corztinued) 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result froin providing services and producing and delivering goods in 
connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of 
the County's Internal Service Fund is charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses 
for Internal Service Funds include the cost of services and administrative expenses. All revenues and 
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 

The County maintains its financial records on the cash basis. The financial statements of the County are 
prepared by making memorandum adjusting entries to the cash basis financial records. 

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY 

The following accounting policies are followed in preparing the financial statements: 

Cash, Pooled Investments and Cash Eauivalents - The cash balances of most County funds are pooled 
and invested. Interest earned on investments is recorded in the General Fund, unless otherwise 
provided by law. Investments are stated at fair value except for the investment in the Iowa Public 
Agency Investment Trust which is valued at amortized cost and non-negotiable certificates of deposit 
which are stated at cost. 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, all short-term cash investments that are highly liquid are 
considered to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents are readily convertible to known ainoui~ts of cash 
and, at the day of purchase, have a maturity date no longer than three months. 

m y  Tax Receivable - Property tax in governmental funds is accounted for using the modified 
accrual basis of accounting. 

Property tax receivable is recognized in these funds on the levy or lien date, which is the date the tax 
aslcing is certified by the County Board of Supervisors. Delinquent property tax receivable represents 
unpaid taxes for the current and prior years. The succeeding year property tax receivable represents 
taxes certified by the Board of Supervisors to be collected in the next fiscal year for the purposes set 
out in the budget for the next fiscal year. By statute, the Board of Supervisors is required to certify its 
budget in March of each year for the subsequent fiscal year. However, by statute, the tax askiug and 
budget certification for the following fiscal year becomes effective on the first day of that year. 
Although the succeeding year property tax receivable has bee11 recorded, the related revenue is deferred 
in both the government-wide and fund financial statements and will not be recognized as revenue until 
the year for which it is levied. 

Property tax revenue recognized in these funds becomes due and collectible in September and March of 
the fiscal year with a l%% per month penalty for delinquent payments; is based on January 1, 2008 
assessed property valuations; is for the tax accrual period July 1, 2009 through June 30, 2010 and 
reflects the tax asking contained in the budget certified by the County Board of Supervisors in March, 
2009. 

Interest and Penaltv on Provertv Tax Receivable - Interest and penalty on property tax receivable 
represents the amount of interest and penalty that was due aud payable, but has not been collected. 

Drainage Assessments Receivable - Drainage assessments receivable represent the amounts assessed to 
iudividuals for work done on drainage districts which benefit their property. 



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

Note I :  Summarv o f  Significant Accountinp Policies (Continued) 

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY (CONTNUED) 

Due from Other Governments - Due from other governments represents amounts due from the State of 
Iowa, various shared revenues, grants, and reinlbursements from other governments. 

Inventories - Inventories are valued at cost using the first-in, first-out method. Inventories in the 
Special Revenue Funds consist of expendable supplies held for consumption. The cost is recorded as an 
expenditure at the time individual inventory items are purchased. Reported inventories are equally 
offset by a fund balance reserve which indicates that they are not available to liquidate current obli- 
gations. 

Capital Assets - Capital assets, which include property, equipulent and vehicles, and infrastructure 
assets (e.g., roads, bridges, curbs, gutters, sidewalks and similar items which are immovable and of 
value only to the goveiment), are reported in the governmental activities column in the government- 
wide Statement of Net Assets. Capital assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost 
if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the 
date of donation. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset 
or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized. Reportable capital assets are defined by the County 
as assets with initial, individual costs in excess of the following thresholds and estimated useful lives in 
excess of two years. 

Asset Class Amount 
Infrastructure $50,000 
Land, Buildings and Inlprovements $25,000 
Equipment and Vehicles $5,000 

Capital assets of the County are depreciated using the straight line method over the following estimated 
useful lives: 

Estimated 
Useful Lives 

Asset Class 
Buildings . 
Building Improvements 
Infrastructure 
Equipment 
Vehicles 

(In Years) 
40-65 

Due to Other Governments - Due to other governments represents taxes and other revenues collected by 
the County and payments for services which will be remitted to other governments. 

Trusts Pavable - Trusts payable represents amounts due to others which are held by various County 
officials in fiduciary capacities until the underlying legal matters are resolved. 

Deferred Revenue - Although certain revenues are measurable, they are not available. Available meals 
collected within the current period or expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay 
liabilities of the current period. Deferred revenue in the governmental fund finallcia1 statements 
represents the amount of assets that have been recognized, but the related revenue has not been 
recognized since the assets are not collected within the current period or expected to be collected soon 
enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. Deferred revenue consists of 
unspent grant proceeds as well as property tax receivable and other receivables not collected within 
sixty days after year-end. 



Yotcs to Financial Statements (Continued) 

Note 1: Summarv o f  Significant Accountina Policies (Continued) 

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY (CONTNUED) 

Deferred revenue on the Statement of Net Assets consists of succeeding year property tax receivable 
that will not be recognized as revenue until the year for which it is levied and unspent grant proceeds. 

Compensated Absences - County employees accumulate a limited amount of earned but unused 
vacation hours for subsequent use or for payment upon termination, death or retirement. A liability is 
recorded when incurred in the government-wide, proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial 
statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental fund financial statements only for 
employees who have resigned or retired. The compensated absences liability has been computed based 
on rates of pay in effect at June 30, 2010. The compensated absence liability attributable to the 
governmental activities will be paid primarily by the General, Mental Health, Rural Services and 
Secondary Roads Funds. 

Long-Term Liabilities - In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, long-term 
debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities 
or proprietary fund Statement of Net Assets. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and 
amortized over the term of the related debt. 

In the governmental fund financial statements, the face amount of debt issued is reported as other 
financing sources. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are 
reported as debt service expenditures. 

Fund Equity - In the governmental fund Cinancial statements, reservations of fund balance are reported 
for amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use 
for a specific purpose. Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that are 
subject to change. 

Net Assets - The net assets of the Internal Service, Employee Group Health Insurance Fund is 
designated for anticipated future catastrophic losses of the County. 

E. BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING 

The budgetary comparison and related disclosures are reported as Required Supplementary Information. 
During the year ended June 30, 2010, disbursements exceeded amounts budgeted in the Non Program 
and Debt Service functions. 

Note 2: Cash and Pooled Investments 

The County's deposits in banks at June 30, 2010, were entirely covered by federal depository insurance 
or by the State Sinking Fund in accordance with Chapter 12C of the Code of Iowa. This chapter 
provides for additional assessments against the depositories to insure there will he no loss of public 
funds. 

The County is authorized by statute to invest public funds in obligations of the United States 
government, its agencies and instrumentalities; certificates of deposit or other evidences of deposit at 
federally insured depository institutions approved by the Board of Supervisors; prime eligible bankers 
acceptances; certain high rated commercial paper; perfected repurchase agreements; certain registered 
open-end management illvestment cotnpanies; certain joint investment trusts; and warrants or 
improvement certificates of a drainage district. 



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

Note 2: Cash and Poolecl Investments (Continued) 

The County had investments in the Iowa Public Agency Investment Trust which are valued at amortized 
cost of $4,150,025, pursuant to Rule 2a-7 under the Investment Company Act of 1940. 

Interest rate risk. The County's investment policy limits the investment of operating funds (funds 
expected to be expended in the current budget year or within 15 months of receipt) in instruments that 
mature within 397 days. Funds not identified as operating funds may be invested in investments with 
maturities longer than 397 days but the maturities shall be consistent with the need and use of the 
County. 

Credit Rislc. The investment in Iowa Public Agency Investment Trust is unrated. 

Note 3: Inter-fund Transfers 

The detail of inter-fund transfers for the year ended June 30,2010, is as follows: 

Transfer To Transfer From Amount 
Special Revenue: 

Secondary Roads General $75,000 
Special Revenue: 

Rural Services 1,397,477 

Total 

Transfers generally move resources from the fund statutorily required to collect the resources to the fund 
statutorily required to expend the resources. 

Note 4: Capital Assets 

Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2010 was as follows: 

Balance Balance 
Beginning End 

of Year Increases Decreases of Year 
Governmental Activities: 

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated: 
Land 
Construction in Progress 

Total Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated 

Capital Assets Being Depreciated: 
Buildings and Improvements 
Machinery and Equipment 
Vehicles 
Infrastructure, Road Network 

Total Capital Assets Being Deprecialed 



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

Note 4: Caoital Assets (Continued) 

Balance Balance 
Beginning End 

of Year Iilcreases Decreases of Year 
Less Accumulated Depreciation for: 

Buildings and Improvements $2,031,943 $72,619 $31,250 $2,073,312 
Machinery and Equipment 3,603,831 397,456 58,572 3,942,715 
Vehicles 643,679 113,985 84,172 673,492 
Infrastructure, Road Network 3,812,365 861,379 0 4,673,744 

Total Accumulated Depreciation 10,091,818 1,445,439 173,994 11,363,263 

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net 20,246,166 2,801,380 17,442 23,030,104 

Governmental Activities Capital Assets, Net $24,522,885 $8,807,171 $3,571,993 $29,758,063 

Depreciation expense was charged to the following functions: 

Governmental Activities: 
Public Safety and Legal Services 
Mental Health 
County Enviroinnent and Education 
Roads and Transportation 
Governmental Services to Residents 
Administration 

Total Depreciation Expense - Governnlental Activities $1,445,439 

Note 5: Due to Other Governntents 

The County purchases services from other governmental units and also acts as a fee and tax collectioil 
agent for various governineutal units. Tax collections are remitted to those governments in the month 
following collection. A sunlmaiy of amounts due to other goveriunents is as follows: 

Fund - Description Amount 
General Services $31,236 
Special lievenue: 

Mental Health 
Secondary Roads 

Services 

Total for Governmental Funds $445,508 

Agency: 
Agricultural Extension Collections 
Assessor & Special Appraisal 
Schools 
Community Colleges 
Corporations 
Auto License & Use Tax 
All Other 

Total for Agency Funds 



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

Note 6: Chalzaes in Lona-Ternt Liabilities 

A summary of changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2010, is as follows: 

General 
Obligation 
Notes & Conservation Compensated 
Bonds Note Absences Drainage Total 

Balance Begiming of Year $4,405,000 $18,670 $209,665 $35,685 $4,669,020 

Increases 0 60,000 50,656 14,860 125,516 

Decreases 245,000 13,336 0 0 258,336 

Balance End of Year $4,160,000 $65,334 $260,321 $50,545 $4,536,200 

Due Within One Year $155,000 $13,335 $260,321 $0 $428,656 

Notes and Bo l~ds  Payable 

During the year ended June 30, 2005, the County issued $420,000 of General Obligatioll County 
Purpose Notes for the purpose of providing funds to pay the cost of acquiring voting and coinputer 
equipment and improving the parking lot at the Courthouse. The notes are general obligations of the 
County and will be paid with taxes levied on all taxable property in the County. Interest is payable 
semiannually commencing on December 1, 2005, principal is due annually commencing June 1, 2006. 
The note was paid in full on June 1, 2010. 

On December 1, 2008, the County issued $4,550,000 of General Obligation County Jail Bonds, Series 
2008. The bonds were issued for the purpose of providing the funds to pay the cost of constructing, 
furnishing and equipping a County jail and public safety center, which was approved at a special 
election held on August 21, 2007. Interest ranges from 4.85% to 5.40% over the life of the issue. 
Interest payments are due semiannually on June 1 and December 1, from 2009 through June 1, 2027. 
Principal payments are due annually commencing June 1, 2009. 

A summary of ihe County's General Obligation Bond indebtedness is as follows: 

Year Ending June 30, Interest Rate Principal Interest Total 
2011 4.85% $165,000 $208,165 $373,165 
2012 4.85% 170,000 200,163 370,163 
2013 4.85% 180,000 191,917 371,917 
2014 4.85% 190,000 183,188 373,188 
2015 4.85% 195,000 173,972 368,972 

2016-2020 4.60-4.85% 1,135,000 719,220 1,854,220 
2021-2025 4.90-5.30% 1,440,000 415,158 1,855,158 
2026-2027 5.35-6.40% 685,000 55,722 740,722 

The County was in complia~~ce in this issuance of this debt. 



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

Note 6: Changes in Long-Term Liabilities (Continued) 

During the year ended June 30, 2001, the Executive Council of Iowa approved a loan from the 
Contingency Fund for the Fontana Dam Restoration Project to the Buchanan County Conservation 
Board. The loan is free of interest and is due in 10 amual il~stallrnents of $9,335, the first payment due 
on December 4,2001. 

A summary of debt is as follows: 

Year Ending June 30, Principal 
2011 $9,335 

Conservation Contract 

In August of 2009, the Board approved a contract for the purchase of land into which the Conservation 
Board entered. The contract was for $60,000 to be paid in annual installments of $4,000 for 15 years. 
The contracts is free of interest. A summary of the contract payments is as follows: 

Year Ending June 30, Principal 
2011 $4,000 

Note 7: Pension and Retivenrenl Benefits 

The County contributes to the Iowa Public Employees Retirement System (IPERS), which is a cost 
sharing iultiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of Iowa. IPERS 
provides retirement and death benefits which are established by state statute to plan members and 
beneciciaries. IPERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and 
required supplementary information. The report may be obtained by writing to IPERS, P.O. Box 9117, 
Des Moines, Iowa, 50306-9117. 

Most plan members are required to contribute 3.90% of their annual covered salary and the County is 
required to contribute 6.05% of annual covered salary. Certain employees in special risk occupations 
and the County contribute an acluarially determined contribution rate. Contribution requirements are 
established by state statute. The County's contributions to IPERS for the years ended June 30, 2010, 
2009, and 2008 were $299,006, $277,602 and $255,520, respectively, equal to the required 
contributions for each year. 



bores to Financial Statements (Continued) 

Note 8: Risk Managenrent 

Buchanan County is a member in the Iowa Com~nunities Assurance Pool, as allowed by Chapter 
331.301 of the Code of Iowa. The Iowa Commuilities Assurance Pool (Pool) is a local government 
risk-sharing pool with over 634 members froin various governmental entities throughout the State of 
Iowa. The Pool was formed in August 1986 for the purpose of inanaging and funding third-party 
liability claims against its members. The Pool provides coverage and protection in the followii~g 
categories: general liability, automobile liability, autolnobile physical damage, public officials liability, 
police professional liability, property, inland marine and boilerimachinery. There have been no 
reductions in insurance coverage from prior years. 

Each member's annual casualty contributions to the Pool fund current operations and provide capital. 
Annual operating contributions are those amounts necessary to fund, on a cash basis, the pool's general 
and administrative expenses, claims, claims expenses, and reinsurance expenses due and payable in the 
curreilt year, plus all or any portion of any deficiency in capital. Capital coiltributions are made during 
the first six years of membership and are maintained to equal 200 percent of the total current members' 
basis rates or to comply with the requirements of any applicable regulatory authority having jurisdiction 
over the Pool. 

The Pool also provides property coverage. Members who elect such coverage make annual operating 
contributions which are necessary to fund, on a cash basis, the Pool's general and administrative 
expenses and reinsurailce premiums, all of which are due and payable in the current year, plus all or any 
portion of any deficiency in capital. Any year-end operating surplus is transferred to capital. 
Deficiencies in operations are offset by transfers from capital and, if sufficient, by the subsequent year's 
meillber contributions. 

The County's property and casualty contributions to the risk pool are recorded as expenditures from its 
operating funds at the time of payment to the risk pool. The County's annual contributions to the Pool 
forthe year ended June 30,2010 were $139,157. 

The Pool uses reiilsurance and excess risk sharing agreements to reduce its exposure to large losses. 
The Pool retains general, automobile, police professional, and public officials liability risks up to 
$350,000 per claim. Claims exceeding $350,000 are reinsured in an amount not to exceed $2,650,000 
per claim and $10,000,000 in aggregate per year. For members requiring specific coverage from 
$3,000,000 to $10,000,000, such excess coverage is also reinsured. Property and automobile physical 
damage risks are retaincd by the Pool up to $150,000 each occurrence, each location, with excess 
coverage reinsnred by The Travelers Iilsurance Company. 

The Pool's intergovernmental contract with its members provides that in the event a casualty claiin or 
series of claims exceeds the amount of risk sharing protection provided by the member's risk sharing 
certificate, or in the event that a series of casualty claims exhausts total members' equity plus any 
reinsurance and any excess risk sharing recoveries, then payment of such claims shall be the obligation 
of the respective individual member. The County does not report a liability for losses in excess of 
reinsurance or excess risk sharing recoveries uilless it is deemed probable that such losses have 
occurred and the amount of such loss can be reasonably estimated. Accordingly, at June 30, 2010, no 
liability has been recorded in the County's financial statements. As of June 30, 2010, settled claims 
have not exceeded the risk pool or reinsurance company coverage since the pool's inception. 



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

Note 8: Risk Manapement (Continued) 

Members agree to continue membership in the Pool for a period of not less than one full year. After 
such period, a member who has given 60 days prior written notice may withdraw from the Pool. Upon 
withdrawal, payments for all claims and claim expenses become the sole responsibility of the 
withdrawing member, regardless of whether a claim was incurred or reported prior to the member's 
withdrawal. Members withdrawing within the first six years of membership may receive a partial refund 
of their capital contributions. If a member withdraws after the sixth year, the member is refunded 100 
percent of their capital contributions. However, the refund is reduced by an amount equal to the annual 
casualty operating contribution which the withdrawing member would have made for the one-year 
period following withdrawal. 

The County also carries connnercial insurance purchased from other insurers for coverage associated 
with worker's coinpensation and employee blanket bond. The County assumes liability for any 
deductibles and claims in excess of coverage limitations. The County assumes responsibility for 
worker's compensation and employee blanket bond in excess of $1,000,000 and $20,000 per employee, 
with additional $230,000 coverage on the Treasurer. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not 
exceeded conunercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 

Note 9: Health Insurance Plan 

The County is self-insured for health insurance coverage of its employees. Claims of the employees are 
submitted to a third-party administrator who, in turn, bills the plan funds for the necessary amount. The 
plan is covered by reinsurance to protect the stop-loss of 125% of expected claims. 

The County's contribution for the year ended June 30,2010 was $1,634,888 

Note 10: Other Pustemplovment Benefits (OPEB) 

Buchanan County implemented GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by 
Employers for Postemplovment Benefits Other Than Pensions during the year ended June 30, 2010. 

Plan Description. The County operates a single-employer retiree benecit plan which provides 
medicaliprescription drug benefits for retirees and their spouses. There are 99 active and 2 retired 
members in the plan. Einployees must be age 55 or older at retirement. 

The medicaliprescription drug benefit, which is a self-f~mded medical plan, is administered by Auxianl. 
Retirees under age 65 pay the same premium for the medicallprescription d n ~ g  benefit as active 
employees, which results in an implicit subsidy and an OPEB liability. 

Funding Policy. The contribution requirements of plan members are established and may be amended 
by the County. The County currently finances the retiree benefits plan on a pay-as-you-go basis. 

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation. The County's annual OPEB cost is calculated based on 
the annual required contribution of the County (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance 
with GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, 
is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities over a period 
not to exceed 30 years. 



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

Note 10: Other Postcmolovntent Benefits (OPEBL (Continued) 

The table shows the components of the County's annual OPEB cost for June 30, 2010, the amount 
actually contributed to the plan and the changes in the County's net OPEB obligation: 

Annual required contribution $112,639 
Interest on net OPEB obligation 0 
Adjustment to annual required contribution 0 

Annual OPEB cost (expense) 112,639 
Contributions made 

Increase in net OPEB obligation 
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of the year 0 

Net OPEB obligation - end of the year $110,110 

For calculation of the net OPEB obligation, the actuary has set the transition day as July 1, 2009. The 
end of year net OPEB obligation was calculated by the actuary as the cumulative difference between the 
actuarially determined funding requirements and the plan's actual contributions for the year ended June 
30,2010. 

For the fiscal year 2010, the County contributed $2,529 to the medical plan. Plan members receiving 
benefits contributed $16,340, or 86.59% of the premium costs. 

The County's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the 
net OPEB obligation as of June 30,2010 are summarized as follows: 

Percentage of Net 
Fiscal Year Annual Amlual OPEB OPEB 

Ended OPEB Cost Cost Contributed Obligation 
June 30,2010 $112,639 2.24% $110,110 

Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of July 1, 2009, the most recent actuarial valuation date of the 
period July 1, 2009 through June 30, 2010, the actuarial accrued liability was $1,013,171, with no 
actuarial value of assets, resulting in an unfunded actuarial liability (UAAL) of $1,013,171. The 
covered payroll (annual payroll of active einployees covered by the plan) was $3,810,123, and the ratio 
of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 26.59%. As of June 30,2010, there were no trust fund assets. 

Actuarial Methods and Assumvtions. Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan ii~volve estimates of the 
value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the 
fitture. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost 
trend. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared 
with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, 
presented as Required Supplementary Information in the section following the Notes to the Financial 
Statements, will present multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is 
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits. 

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the plan as understood by the 
employer and the plan members and include the types of bellefits provided at the time of each valuation 
and the historical pattern of sharing benefits costs between employer and plan members to that point. 
The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects 
of short term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with 
the long term perspective of the calculations. 



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

Note 10: Other Postemplovment Benefits (OPEB) (Continued) 

As of July 1, 2009 actuarial date, the Frozen Entry Age Actuarial Cost method was used. The actuarial 
assumptions included a 2.5% discount rate based on the County's funding policy. The projected annual 
medical trend rate is 6%. 

Mortality rates are from a 94 Group Amuity Mortality Table, applied on a gender specific basis. 
Annual retirement and termination probabilities were developed from the retirement probabilities from 
the IPERS Actuarial Valuation Report as of June 30, 2007 and applying the termination factors used in 
IPERS Actuarial Report as of June 30, 2007. 

The UAAL is being amortized on a level dollar basis over 30 years. 

Note 11: Contnritnlents and Contirz~eircies 

The County participates in a number of federally assisted grant programs. The programs are subject to 
financial and compliance audits. The anlount of expenditures, if any, which may be disallowed by the 
granting agencies is not determinable at this time; however, County officials do not believe that such 
amounts would be significant. 

Note 12: Related Partv Transactions 

The County had business transactions between the County and County officials during the year ended 
June 30,2010. 

Note 13: Bud@ Over-expenditure 

Per the Code of Iowa, disbursements may not legally exceed amounts budgeted by functioti or amounts 
appropriated by department. During the year ended Juue 30, 2010, disbursemeills in the Debt Service 
and Non Program fu~~ctions exceeded the amounts budgeted and disbursements in certain departments 
exceeded the amounts appropriated. 

Note 14: 2SE Arreement 

Buchanan County participates in an agreement with the Buchanan Coui~ty Landfill Commission, a 
political subdivision created under Chapter 28E of the Code of Iowa. The pwpose of the Commission 
includes providing economic disposal of solid waste produced or generated within the County and 
member inunicipalities. 

The County has provided a local government guarantee for a portion of the postclosure costs of the 
Com~nission in accordance with Chapter 111.6(8) of the Iowa Administrative Code. Total costs of 
postclosure of the landfill as of June 30, 2010 are equal to the postclosure estimated amounts and the 
County's financial assurance obligation of that amount is assured. 

I11 the event the Cominission fails to perform postclosure care in accordance with the appropriate plan 
or permit, whenever required to do so, or fails to obtain alternate financial assurance with 90 days of 
intent to cancel, the County will perform, or pay a third party to perfom, postclosure care or establish a 
standby trust fund in the name of the Commission or obtain alternate financial assurance in the amount 
of the assured amount. 



Notes to Fillancia1 Statements (Continued) 

Note 15: Subsequent Events 

Management evaluated subsequent events through March 25, 2011, the date the financial statements 
were available to be issued. Events or transactions occurring after June 30, 2010, but prior to March 
25, 2011, that provided additional evidence about conditions that existed at June 30, 2010, have been 
recognized in the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2010. Events or transactions that 
provided evidence about conditions that did not exist at Juue 30, 2010, but arose before the financial 
statements were available to be issued, have not been recognized in the financial statements for the year 
ended June 30,2010. 

Note 16: E911 Enhancement Loan 

On March 15, 2010, the County entered into an agreement to borrow $166,000 to improve the E911 
service system. 

The loan was issued by the Security State Bank to provide funding for new equipment. The loan is 
secured by a pledge of surcharge revenues payable to the Joint E911 Service Boards. Loan principal 
and interest payments are made by the County from the surcharge revenues. 

The loan shall not be a general obligation of the E911 Service Board or the County nor shall the County 
in any manner be liable by reason of the failure of the surcharge revenues or monies available in the 
fund, to be sufficient for the payment of the loan. 

The payments will not be included in the County's financial statements 

The following is a schedule of payments under the agreement in effect at June 30, 2010: 

Year Ending 
June 30, Interest Rate Principal Interest Total 

2011 2.8% $23,571 $4.777 $28.348 



BUCHANAN COUNTY 
Independence, Iowa 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS, 
DISBURSEMENTS AND CHANGES IN BALANCES 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS) - ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

Year Ended June 30,2010 

Less 
Final to 
Actual 

Funds Not Variance 
Required to Budgeted Amouilts Positive 

Actual Be Budgeted Net Original Final (Negative) 
RECEIPTS: 

Property & Other County Tax $7,767,075 $0 $7,767,075 $7,681,534 $7,681,534 $85,541 
Interest & Penalty on Property Tax 66,314 0 66,314 55,000 55,000 11,314 
Intergovernmental 6,157,514 0 6,157,514 7,043,714 7,148,640 (991,126) 
Liceiises & Perinits 15,356 0 15,356 12,300 12,300 3,056 
Charges for Services 506,062 0 506,062 448,670 448,670 57,392 
Use of Money & Property 206,771 0 206,771 255,543 255,543 (48,772) 
Miscellaneous 168,946 3,173 165,773 69,747 79,452 86,321 

Total Receipts 14,888,038 3,173 14,884,865 15,566,508 15,681,139 (796,274) 

DISBURSEMENTS: 
Public Safety & Legal Services 
Physical Heallh & Social Services 
Mental Health 
County Environmeilt & Education 
Roads & Transportatioil 
Governmental Services to Residents 
Administrative Services 
Non-Program 
Debt Service 
Capital Projects 4,054,293 0 4,054,293 4,255,952 5,724,119 1,669,826 

Total Disbursements 17,558,338 14,860 17,543,478 19,682,383 21,315,291 3,771,813 

Excess (Deficiency) of Receipts Over 
(Under) Disbursements (2,670,300) (11,687) (2,658,613) (4,115,875) (5,634,152) 2,975,539 

Other Financing Sources, Net 33,213 14,860 18,353 180,000 188,500 (170,147) 

Excess (Deficiency) of Receipts & 
Other Financing Sources Over 
(Under) Disbursements & Other 
Financing Uses (2,637,087) 3,173 (2,640,260) (3,935,875) (5,445,652) 2,805,392 

Balailce Beginning of Year 8,855,291 22,038 8,833,253 6,795,897 8,819,326 13,927 

Balance End of Year $6,218,204 $25,211 $6,192,993 $2,860,022 $3,373,674 $2,819,319 

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report 



BUCHANAN COUNTY 
Independence, Iowa 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - BUDGET T O  GAAP RECONCILIATION 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

Year Ended June 30,2010 

Governmental Funds 
Modified 

Cash Accrual Accrual 
Basis Adjustments B a s i s  

Revelrues $14,888,038 $(24) $14,888,014 

Expenditures 17,558,338 (277,814) 17,280,524 

Net (2,670,300) 277,790 (2,392,510) 

Other Financing Sources, Net 33,213 0 33,213 

Beginning Fund Balances 8,855,291 (977,104) 7,878,187 

Increase in Reserve For: 
Inventories 0 70,819 70,819 

Ending Fund Balances $6,218,204 $(628,495) $5,589,709 

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report 



Buchanan County 
Independence, Iowa 

Notes to Required Supplementary Information - Budgetary Reporting 

June 30,2010 

This budgetary cornparisoil is presented as Required Supplementary Information in accordance with 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 41 for goverilments with significant 
budgetary perspective differences resulting from not being able to present budgetary coinparison for 
the General Fund and each major Special Revenue Fund. 

In accordance with the Code o f  Iowa, the County Board o f  Supervisors annually adopts a budget on 
the cash basis following required public notice and hearing for all funds, except blended component 
units and Agency Funds, and appropriates the amount deemed necessary for each o f  the different 
County offices and departments. The budget may be amended during the year utilizing similar 
statutorily prescribed procedures. Encumbrances are ilot recognized on the cash basis budget and 
appropriations lapse at year end. 

Formal and legal budgetary control is based upon 10 major classes o f  expenditures known as 
functions, not by fund. These 10 functions are: public safety and legal services, physical health and 
social services, illental health, county enviroilinent and education, roads and transportation, 
governmental services to residents, administration, non-program, debt service and capital projects. 
Function disburseme~~ts required to be budgeted include disbursements for the General Fund, 
Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Fund and Capital Projects Fund. Although the budget 
document presents fui~ction disbursements by fund, the legal level o f  control is at the aggregated 
function level, not by fund. Legal budgetary control is also based upon the appropriatiou to each 
office or department. During the year, a budget ainendment increased budgeted disbursements by 
$100,220. The budget amendments are reflected in the final budgeted amounts. 

In addition, annual budgets are similarly adopted in accordailce with the Code o f  Iowa by the 
appropriate governing body as indicated: for the County Extension Office by the County 
Agricultural Extension Council, for the County Assessor by the County Conference Board, for the 
E911 System by the Joint E911 Service Board and for Emergency Management Services by the 
County Emergency Management Commission. 

During the year ended June 30, 2010, disbursements exceeded the amounts budgeted in the Debt 
Service, and Non-Progra~n functions and disburse~nents in certain departinents exceeded the 
amounts appropriated. 



Buchanan County 

Schedule of Funding Progress for the Retiree Health Plan (In Thousands) 

Required Suppleinentary Information 

Actuarial UAAL as a 
Actuarial Accsued Unfunded Percentage of 

Actuarial Value of Liability AAL Funded Covered Covered 
Valuation Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll 

Date (a) (b) (b-a) (alb) (c) (b-a)/(c) 

July 1, 2009 $0 $1,013 $1,013 0% $3,810 26.59% 

See Note 10 in the accompanying Notes to Financial Statements for the plan description, funding 
policy, annual OPEB costs and Net OPEB Obligation, and the funded status and funding progress. 



BUCHANAN COUNTY 
Independence, Iowa 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

June 30,2010 

Sheriff's 
Jail Room Commissary Sheriffs Sheriff's Federal 
and Board Profit Canine Forfeiture Forfeiture 

ASSETS 

Cash & Pooled Investments: $139,614 $649 $5,155 $225 $41 
Receivables: 

Property Tax 
Delinquent 0 0 0 0 0 
Succeeding Year 0 0 0 0 0 

Accounts 0 448 0 0 0 
Accrued Interest 0 0 0 0 0 
Drainage Assessments 0 0 0 0 0 

TOTAL ASSETS $139,614 $1,097 $5,155 $225 $41 

LIABILITIES, FUND EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS 

Liabilities 
Accrued Interest $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Deferred Revenue 

Succeeding Year Property Tax 0 0 0 0 0 
Other 0 0 0 0 0 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 0 0 0 0 0 

Fund Balances 
Reserved for Debt Service 
Unreserved 139,614 1,097 5,155 225 4 1 

TOTAL FUND BALANCES - 139,614 1,097 5,155 225 4 1 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $139,614 $1,097 $5,155 $225 $4 1 

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report 



Schedule 1 

Recorder Recorders 
Records Electronic Nature Conservation Conservation 

REAP Management Transaction Center Drainage Fiduciary Reserve Debt Service Total 



BUCHANAN COUNTY 
Independence, Iowa 

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
Year Ended June 30,2010 

Sheriffs 
Jail Room Cominissary Sheriffs Sheriffs Federal 
and Board Profit Canine Forfeiture Forfeiture 

REVENUES: 
Property and Other County Tax $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Intergovernmental 
Charges for Services 
Use of Money and Property - ~ 

Miscella~~eous 0 0 0 0 0 
Total Revenues 50,252 2,774 0 0 0 

EXPENDITURES: 
Operating: 

Public Safety and Legal Services 
County Enviro~unent and Education 
Governmental Services to Residents 
Non-Progriun 

Debt Service 
Capital Projecls 0 0 0 0 0 

Total Expenditures 0 11,000 0 0 0 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over 
(Under) Expel~ditures 50,252 (8,226) 6 0 0 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Sale of Capital Assets 0 0 0 0 0 
Drainage Warrants/Improvement Certificates 0 0 0 0 0 

'Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 0 0 0 0 0 - 

Net Change in Fund Balances 50,252 (8,226) 6 0 0 

Fund Balances Beginning of Year -- 89,362 9,323 5,149 225 4 1 

Fund Balances End of Year $139,614 $1,097 $5,155 $225 $4 1 

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report 



Schedule 2 

Recorder's Recorder's 
Records Electronic Nature Conservation Conservation Debt 

REAP Management Transaction Center Drainage Fiduciary Reserve Service Total 



BUCHANAN COUNTY 
Independence, Iowa 

COMBINWG SCHEDULE OF FIDUCIARY 
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

AGENCY FUNDS 
June 30.2010 

Agricultural 
County Extensio~l County 
Offices Education Assessor Schools 

ASSETS 

Cash and Pooled Investments: 
County Treasurer $0 $2,313 $100,613 $141,233 
Other County Officials 40,655 0 0 0 

Receivables: 
Property Tax: 

Delinquent 0 11 12 662 
Succeeding Year 0 181,865 210,826 11,292,466 

Accoul~ts 0 0 0 0 
Accrued Interest 0 0 0 0 

TOTAL ASSETS $40,655 $184,189 $311,451 $11,434,361 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts Payable $0 $0 $0 $0 
Due to Other Governme~lts 0 184,189 307,174 11,434,361 
Tmsts Payable 40,655 0 0 0 
Compensated Absences 0 0 4,277 0 

TOTAL LIABILITIES $40,655 $184,189 $311,451 $11,434,361 

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report 



Schedule 3 

Auto 
Community License & 

Colleges Corporations Townships Use Tax Other Total 



BUCHANAN COUNTY 
Independence, Iowa 

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY 
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES -AGENCY FUNDS 

Year Ended June 30,2010 

Agricultural 
County Extension County 
Offices Education Assessor Schools 

Assets and Liabilities 

Balances Beginning of Year 

Additions: 
Property and Other County Tax 
E9 1 1 Surcharge 
State Tax Credits 
Office Fees and Collections 
Auto Licenses, Use Tax and Postage 
Assessments 
Trusts 
Miscellaileous 

Total Additioils 

Deductions: 
Agency Remittances: 

To Other Funds 
To Other Governments 
Trusts Paid Out 

Total Deductions 

Balances End of Year $40,655 $184,189 $311,451 $11,434,361 

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report 



Schedule 4 

Auto 
Coinmunity License & 

Colleges Corporations Towilshiys Use Tax Other Totals 



BUCHANAN COUNTY 
Independence, Iowa 

Revenues: 
Property & Other County Tax 
Interest &Penalty On Property Tax 
Inlergovenlmental 
Licenses &Permits 
Charges For Service 
Use of Money & Property 
Miscellaneous 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES BY SOURCE AND 
EXPENDITCTRES BY FUNCTION 
ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

For the Last Eight Years 

Total 

Expenditures: 
Operating: 

Public Safely & Legal Services 
Physical Health & Social Services 
Mental Health 
County Environment & Education 
Roads and Transportation 
Governmental Services To Residents 
Adnluistration 
Nan-program 

Debt Services 
Capital Projects 

Modified Accrual Basis 
2010 2009 2008 2007 

Total $17,280,524 $18,273,225 $13,590,015 $12,762,539 

See Accompanyiilg Independent Auditors' Report 



Schedule 5 

Modified Accrual Basis 
2006 2005 2004 2003 



Schedule 6 
BUCHANAN COUNTY 

Independence, Iowa 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
Year Ended June 30,20 10 

Direct: 
U.S. Department of Justice: 

Community Oriented Policing Services 
2008 COPS Technology Program 

Indirect: 
U.S. Department of Agriculture: 

Iowa Department of Hunlan Services: 
Hunan Services Administrative Reimbursenlents: 

State Adn~iiustrative Matching Grants for the 
Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program 

U.S. Departmeut of Justice: 
Iowa Department of Justice: 

IowalBynle Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Prograd 
ARRA 

U.S. Department of Transportation: 
Iowa Departmeirt of Transportation: 

Highway Plamring and Coirst~uction 

National Highway Traffic Safety Administration: 
Iowa Department of Public Safety: 

Traffic Safety Bureau: 
Incentive Grants for Use of Seat Belts 

U.S. Department of Education: 
Iowa Deparhnent of Transportation: 
ARRA- State Fiscal Stabilization Fund (SFSF) - 

Government Services, Recovery Act 

U.S. Deparbnent of Health and Human Services: 
Iowa Department of Public Health : 

Public I-lealth Emergency Preparedness and Response 

U.S. Deparlment olHealth and Human Services: 
Iowa Deparhnent of Human S e ~ c e s :  

Human Services Administrative Reimbursements: 
Temporary Assistance for Needy Fmnilies 
Refugee and Entrant Assistance 
Cluld Care Mandatory and Matching Funds of the 

Child Care and Development Fund 
Foster Care - Title IV-E 
Adoption Assistance 

CFDA 
Number 

Agency or 
Pass-through Progrmn 

Number Expenditures 

PAP 10-406, Task 21 4,500 



SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINUED) 

Agency or 
CFDA Pass-through Program 

Grantor/Progranl Number Number Expenditures 

Indirect (Continued): 
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (Continued): 

Iowa Department of Human Services (Continued): 
Human Services Administrative Reimbursements (Contillued): 

Medical Assistance Progranl 93.778 
. Childrens' Health Insurance Program 93.767 

Social Services Block Grant 93.667 

Social Services Block Grant 93.667 81,710 
87,298 

U.S. Department of Hotneland Security 
Iowa Department of Public Defense: 

Iowa Homeland Security and Emergency Management 
Division: 

Disaster Grants - Public Assistance 97.036 DR 1763 28,676 
(Presidentially Declared Disasters) 

Total Indirect $350,730 

Total $627,815 

Basis of Presentation - The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant activity of 
Buchanan County and is presented on the niodified accrual basis of accounting. The information on this schedule is 
presented UI accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and 
Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, 
or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements. 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 



Gardiner Thomen 
Certified Public Accountants 

Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over 
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters 
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in 
Accordance with Govevnnzent Auditing Standards 

To the Officials of Buchanan County: 
Independence, Iowa 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and 
the aggregate remaining fund information of Buchanan County, Iowa, as of and for the year ended June 30, 
2010, which collectively comprise the County's basic financial statements listed in the table of contents, and 
have issued our report thereon dated March 25, 2011. We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. 
generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered Buchanan County's internal control over financial 
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the 
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the effectiveness of Buchanan 
County's internal control over fmancial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of Buchanan County's internal control over fmancial reporting. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the 
preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial 
reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses and therefore, there can be no 
assurance all deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses have been identified. However, as 
described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, we identified certain deficiencies 
in internal control over financial reporting tbat we consider to be material wealcnesses and other deficiencies 
we consider to be significant deficiencies. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility a material misstatement of the County's financial 
statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider the deficiencies in 
internal control described in Part I1 of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as items 
II-A-10, II-B-10 and II-C-10 to be material weaknesses. 

A significant deficiency is a deficiency or combination of deficiencies in internal control which is less severe 
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

We consider the deficiencies in Part I1 of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as 
items D-D-10 and II-E-10 to be significant deficiencies. 

1209 South Main- Chades City, IA 50616-0216' Phone: (641) 228-7096' Fax: (641) 228-7103. w.gardinercpa.com 



Coinvliance and Other Matters 

As a part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Buchanan County's financial statements are Free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its conlpliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts and grant agreements, non-compliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do riot express such an opinion. The results 
of our tests disclosed no instances of non-compliance or other matters that are required to be reported tmder 
Government Auditing Standards. However, we noted certain immaterial instances of non-compliance or other 
matters that are described in Part IV of the acconlpanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. 

Comments involving statutory and other legal matters about the County's operations for the year ended June 
30, 2010 are based exclusively on knowledge obtained from procedures performed during our audit of the 
financial statements of the County. Since our audit was based on tests and samples, not all transactions that 
might have had an impact on the comments were necessarily audited. The comments involving statutory and 
other legal matters are not intended to constitute legal interpretations of those statutes. 

Buchanan County's responses to findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying Schedule 
of Findings and Questioned Costs. While we have expressed our conclusions on the County's responses, we 
did i ~ o t  audit Buchanan County's responses and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them. 

This report, a public record by law, is intended solely for the information and use of the officials, employees 
and citizens of Buchanan County and other parties to whom Buchanan Connty may report, including federal 
awarding agencies and pass-through entities. This report is not intended to be and should not be used by 
anyone other than these specified parties. 

We would like to acknowledge the many courtesies and assistance extended to us by persomel of Buchanan 
County during the course of our audit. Should you have any questions concerning any of the above matters, 
we shall be pleased to discuss them with you at your convenience. 

March 25, 201 1 



Gardiner Thomsen 
Certified Public Accountants 

Independent Auditors' Reporton Con~pliance with Requirements 
Applicable to Each Major Program and on Internal Control Over 
Compliance in Accordnr~cc with ORlB Circular A-133 

To the Officials of Buchanan County: 
Independence, Iowa 

Compliance 

We have audited the compliance of Buchanan County, Iowa, with the types of compliance requirements 
described in U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Conrpliance Supvlenlent that are 
applicable to its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2010. Buchanan County's major federal 
programs are identified in Part I of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. 
Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements applicable to its major 
federal programs are the responsibility of Buchanan County's management. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on Buchanan County's compliance based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards, the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, 
and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether non-compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program 
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Buchanan County's compliance with 
those requirements and perfomling such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 
We believe our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal 
determination on Buchanan County's compliance with those requirements. 

In our opinion, Buchanan County complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above 
that are applicable to its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2010. 

Interilal Control Over Compliance 

The management of Buchanan County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control 
over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements applicable to federal 
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered Buchanan County's internal control over 
compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order 
to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance in accordance 
with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal 
control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Buchanan 
County's internal control over compliance. 
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A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control does not 
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or 
detect and correct nonconlpliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a tiinely 
basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance such that there is a reasonable possibility noncompliance 
with a type of conlpliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented of detected and corrected on 
a tiinely basis. 

A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less 
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet i~nportant enough to merit attention 
by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance 
that might be significant deficiencies or material wealcnesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies as defined 
above. 

This report, a public record by law, is intended solely for the information and use of the officials, employees 
and citizens of Buchanan County and other parties to whon~ Buchanan County may report, including federal 
awarding agencies and pass-through entities. This report is not intended to be and should not be used by 
anyone other than these specified parties. 

March 25, 201 1 



BUCHANAN COUNTY 
Independence,  Iowa 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
Year Ended June 30,2010 

Par t  I: Summarv of the Illdepeudent Auditors' Results: 

(a) Unqualified opinions were issued on the financial statements 

(b) Significant deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting were disclosed by the audit of the 
financial statements, including material weaknesses. 

(c) The audit did not disclose any non-compliance which is material to the financial statements. 

(d) An unqualified opinion was issued on co~npliance with requirements applicable to the major 
programs. 

(e) The audit disclosed no audit finding which is required to be reported in accordance with Office of 
Management and Budget Circular A-133, Section .510(a). 

( The major programs were CFDA Number 16.710 - Comnlunity Oriented Policing Services and CFDA 
Number 16.803 - IowaiByme - Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) P rog rdARRA.  

(g) The dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs was $300,000. 

(h) Buchanan County did not qualify as a low-risk auditee. 



BUCHANAN COUNTY 
Independence, Iowa  

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
Year Ended June 30,2010 

Part  11: Findings Related to the Financial Statements 

INTERNAL CONTROL DEFICIENCIES 

II-A-10 Segregation of Duties - During our review of internal control, the existing procedures are evaluated 
in order to determine that incompatible duties, from a control standpoint, are not performed by the 
same employee. This segregation of duties helps to prevent losses from employee error or dishonesty 
and therefore maximizes the accuracy of the County's financial statements. Responsibility for the 
custody of receipts and for the record keeping and reconciling functions for the Couilty Treasurer's 
office are not segregated due to small office size. Also, an independent person does not approve bank 
wire transfers for investcnents. 

Recommendation - We realize that with a limited number of office enlployees, segregation of duties 
is difficult. However, the County Olficials should review the operating procedures of each office to 
obtain the maximum internal control possible under the circumstai~ces. 

Response - We have reviewed procedures and plan to make the necessary changes to improve internal 
c011trol. 

Conclusion - Response accepted. 

II-B-10 Financial Repor t in~  - During the audit, we identified material amounts of receivables, payables, 
capital assets and iilfrastructure not recorded or incorrectly recorded in the County's financial 
statements. Material amouilts of infrastructure were added due to timing errors and the historic cost 
on material amounts of infrastructure were incorrect. Adjustments were subsequently made by the 
Couuty to properly include these amounts in the financial statements. 

Recommendation - The County should implement procedures to ensure all receivables, payables and 
capital assets are identified and included in the County's financial statements. 

Response - We will revise our current procedures to ensure the proper amounts are recorded in the 
financial statements in the future. 

Conclusion - Response accepted 

II-C-10 Preparation of Fuil Disclosure Fi~ia~icial  Statements - Iilternal controls over financial reportiilg 
include the actual preparation and review of financial statements, including footnote disclosure, for 
external reporting, as required by generally accepted accounting principles. Buchanan County does 
not have the internal resources to prepare the full-disclosure financial statements required by GAAP 
ibr external reporting. While this circumstance is not uncommon for most governmeiltal entities, it is 
the responsibility of management and those charged with governance, to prepare reliable financial 
data, or accept the risk associated with this condition because of cost or other considerations. 

Recommendation - We recognize that with a limited number of office employees, gaining sufficieilt 
knowledge and expertise to properly select and apply accounting principles and preparing full 
disclosure financial statements for external reporting purposes is difficult. However, we recommend 
that County officials continue to review operating procedures and obtain the internal expertise needed 
to handle all the aspects of external financial reporting, rather than rely on external assistance. 



BUCHANAN COUNTY 
Independence, Iowa 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 
Year Ended June 30,2010 

Part  11: Pindings Related to the Financial Statements (Continued) 

Response - We recognize our limitations, however it is not fiscally responsible to add additional staff 
at this time. 

Conclusion - Response acknowledged 

11-D-10 Credit Card Policy - Several departments have credit cards for use by various enlployees while on 
County business. The County does not have a written policy to regulate the use of credit cards and to 
establish procedures for the proper accounting of credit card charges. 

Recommendation - The County should develop a written policy to regulate the use of credit cards and 
to establish procedures for the proper accounting of credit card charges. 

Response -We will develop and implement a written policy as sooil as possible. 

Conclusion - Response accepted. 

11-E-10 I-Jobs Financial Reporting - The grant agreement for the I-Jobs Grant program requires the County 
to submit quarterly reports showing all I-Jobs activity by the last day of the calendar year quarter until 
the Fiscal Year's allocation is used and the project the allocation is used for is finished. The 
submissioil of the reports enables the Iowa Department of Transportatio~~ to submit an annual report 
to the legislature in accordance with House File 820 and 822. The purpose of these reporting 
requirements is to provide transparency and accountability to the people of Iowa. Financial reports 
for the Iowa Department of Transportation regarding I-Jobs funds weren't submitted for each quarter 
inFisca1 Year 2010. 

Recommendation - The County should impleme~lt procedures to ensure timely sub~nission of I-Jobs 
financial reports in accordance with the grant requirements. 

Response - We attempted to submit our quarterly report for the first quarter, but we encountered 
computer issues during the submission process. We contacted the DOT, and they informed us we 
could submit one for the next quarter for both quarters without penalty. 

Conclusion - Response accepted. 

INSTANCES OF NON-COMPLAINCE: 

No matters were noted. 

Part  111: Findings and Ouest io~~ed Costs for Pederal Awards 

INSTANCES OA NON-COMPLIANCE: 

No matters were noted 

INTERNAL CONTROL DEFICIENCIES: 

No matters were noted 



BUCHANAN COUNTY 
Independence, 1owa 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 
Year Ended June 30,2010 

Part  IV: Other Filldings Related to Required Statutory Report ins 

IV-A-10 Certified Budeet - Disburseme~lts during the year ended June 30, 2010 exceeded the amounts 
budgeted in the Debt Service and Non-Program functions. Disbursements exceeded amounts 
appropriated in several departments during the year ended June 30, 2010. 

Recorninendation - The budget should have been amended in accordance with Chapter 331.435 of 
the Code of Iowa before disburseme~lts were allowed to exceed the budget. Chapter 331.434(6) of 
the Code of Iowa authorizes the Board of Supervisors, by resolution to increase or decrease 
appropriations of one office or department by increasing or decreasing the appropriation of another 
office or department as long as the function budget is not increased. Such increases or decreases 
should be made before disbursements are allowed to exceed appropriations. 

Response -We will aillend the budget wheu required and appropriations will be watched more 
closely by the departments. 

Conclusion - Response accepted 

IV-B-10 Onestionable Expenditures - We noted no expenditures we believe may not meet the requirements 
of public purpose as defined in an Attorney General's opi~lioil dated April 25, 1979. 

IV-C-10 Travel Expense - No expenditures of County money for travel expenses of spouses of County 
officials or e~nployees were noted. 

IV-D-10 Bnsiness Transaction - The following business transactions between the County and County 
officials or einployees were noted: 

Name, Title and Business Connection Description Amount 

Cindy Gosse, County Auditor 
Stephanie Witt 
Daughter of Cindy Gosse Election Worker $163 

Cindy Gosse, County Auditor 
Brea Witt 
Daughter- In-Law of Cindy Gosse Election Worker 145 

Cindy Gosse, County Auditor 
Luke Gosse 
Step Son of Cindy Gosse Election Worker 128 

Michelle Mangrich, Deputy Recorder 
Mariam~e Cayoulte 
Mother of Michelle Maugrich 

Vanessa Tisl, Deputy Auditor 
Maryls Miller 
Mother of Vanessa Tisl 

Election Worker 

Election Worker 



BUCHANAN COUNTY 
Independence, Iowa 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 
Year Ended June 30,2010 

Part IV: Other Findings Related to Required Statutorv Reporting (Continued) 

Name, Title and Business Connection Description Amount 

Phyllis Haisch, Assessor's Office 
Lloyd Haisch 
Spouse of Phyllis Haisch Election Worker $523 

The services provided by Stephanie Witt, Brea Witt, Luke Gosse, Marlene Mangrich, Maryls Miller 
and Lloyd Haisch do not appear to represent conflicts of interest as the services provided were not in 
excess of $1,500 as allowed by Chapter 331.342 of the Code of Iowa. 

IV-E-10 Bond Coverages - Surety bond coverage of County officials aud employees is in accordance with 
statutory provisions. The amount of coverage should be reviewed periodically to ensure that 
coverage is adequate for current operations. 

IV-F-10 Board Minutes - No transactions were found that we believe should have been approved in the 
Board minutes but were not. However, the Board held a public hearing for approval of a 
Conservation land purchase contract for which no public notice was published. 

Recommendation -The Board of Supervisors should publish public notice prior to the public hearing 
for approval of the incurrence of debt in accordance with Chapter 331.479 of the Code of Iowa. 

Response -We will publish public notice when required. 

Conclusion - Response accepted 

IV-G-10 Deposits and Investments - No instances of non-compliance with the deposit and investment 
provisions of Chapter 12B aud 12C of the Code of Iowa were noted. 

IV-H-I0 Resource Enhancement and Protection Certification - The County properly dedicated property 
tax revenue to conservation purposes as required by Chapter 455A.l9(1)(b) of the Code of Iowa in 
order to receive the additional REAP funds allocated in accordance with subsections (b)(2) ad 
ib)i3). 

IV-1-10 Ecouomic Developme~~t - During the year ended June 30, 2010, the County speut $253,096 for 
economic development which appear to be appropriate expenditures of public funds since the public 
benefits to be derived have been clearly documented. 

IV-J-10 County Extension Office - The County Extension OCf~ce is operated under the authority of Chapter 
176A of the Code of Iowa and serves as an agency of the State of Iowa. This Cund is administered 
by an extension council separate and distinct from County operations and, consequently, is not 
included in Exhibits A or B. 

Disbursements during the year ended June 30, 2010 for the County Extension Office did not exceed 
the amount budgeted. 



News Release 

Gardiner Thornsen, P.C. today released an audit report on Buchanan County, Iowa. 

The County had local tax revenue of $27,613,243 for the year ended June 30, 2010, which included 
$1,107,836 in tax credits from the State. The County then forwarded $18,499,082 of the local tax 
revenue to the townships, school districts, cities, and other taxing bodies in the County. 

The County retained $8,152,355 of the local tax revenue to finance County operations, a 2% 
increase from the prior year. Other revenues included charges for service of $1,799,852, operating 
and capital grants, contributions and restricted interest of $7,930,194, unrestricted investment 
earnings of $49,316 and other general revenues of $89,298. 

Expenses for the County operations totaled $15,100,769, a 6% decrease from the prior year. 
Expenses included $5,076,709 for Roads and Transportation, $2,699,397 for Public Safety and 
Legal Services, and $2,865,148 for Mental Health. 

A copy of the audit report is available for review in the County Auditor's Office, in the Office of 
Auditor of State and on the Auditor of State's website at http:l/auditor.iowa.eovlreporls/reports. 
u. 


